



Regional Transportation Planning Agency - Local Transportation Commission Monterey County Service Authority for Freeways & Expressways - Email: info@tamcmotnerey.org

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAYS EMERGENCIES AND MONTEREY COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

JOINT POWERS AGENCY

Members are: John Phillips (Chair), Robert Huitt (1st Vice Chair), Luis Alejo (2nd Vice Chair), Alejandro Chavez (Past Chair), Simon Salinas (County Representative), Ed Smith (City Representative)

Wednesday, June 6, 2018 Transportation Agency Conference Room 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas

9:00 AM

1. ROLL CALL

Call to order and self-introductions. If you are unable to attend, please contact Elouise Rodriguez, Senior Administrative Assistant. Your courtesy to the other members to assure a quorum is appreciated.

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any member of the public may address the Committee on any item not on the agenda but within the jurisdiction of Transportation Agency and Executive Committee. Comments on items on today's agenda may be given when that agenda item is discussed.

3. BEGINNING OF CONSENT AGENDA

Approve the staff recommendations for items listed below by majority vote with one motion. Any member may pull an item off the Consent Agenda to be moved to the end of the **CONSENT AGENDA** for discussion and action.

3.1 APPROVE the Executive Committee draft minutes of May 2, 2018.

-Rodriguez

3.2 RECOMMEND that the Board:

- 1. Approve contract amendment with Khouri Consulting to provide an increase in compensation from \$30,000 per year to \$36,000 per year based on performance and hours worked; and,
- 2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute the contract amendment and changes to the contract if such changes do not increase the Agency's net cost, subject to approval by Agency Counsel.

- Hale

Gus Khouri of Khouri Consulting has been providing the Agency with superior services since his hiring on July 1, 2018. His accomplishments include diligent advocacy for the Agency's priorities for transportation funding, including grants through the Senate Bill 1 programs.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

4. **PUBLIC COMMENT** on the Closed Session;

CLOSED SESSION:

REAL ESTATE NEGOTIATIONS.

Pursuant to Government Code section 54956(d)(1) the Executive Committee will confer with counsel on the following existing litigation:

- 1. TAMC v. Olga Chisum, et al., Court Number 17CV001194
- 2. TAMC v. Joseph Viera, Court Number 17CV001228
- 3. TAMC v. MWM Investments, Court Number 17CV001231

RECONVENE in open session and report any actions taken.

- Zeller

5. **RECEIVE** update on the 2018 Regional Development Impact Fee Nexus Study.

- Zeller

The Transportation Agency is required to update the Regional Development Impact Fee every five years. This process includes reviewing the land use and populatin assumptions in the regional travel demand model, forecasting future travel demands, updating the project list as necessary to meet those demands, revising project costs, and developing an updated fee schedule. 6. **RECOMMEND** that the Board of Directors approve delaying the annual evaluation for the Agency Executive Director and Counsel to December 2019 from December 2018.

The Transportation Agency bylaws require an annual evaluation of the Executive Director and Counsel. Executive Director Hale's employment agreement also states that the TAMC Board shall evaluate her by the December Board meeting of each year and Hale shall prepare goals and accomplishments for review by the Board.

7. **RECEIVE** report on draft agenda for June 27, 2018 TAMC Board meeting.

- Hale

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS

9. ADJOURN

Next Executive Committee meeting is: Wednesday, August 1, 2018 Please mark your calendars.

Documents relating to an item on the open session that are distributed to the Committee less than 72 hours prior to the meeting shall be available for public inspection at the office of the Transportation Agency for Monterey County, 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas, CA. Documents distributed to the Committee at the meeting by staff will be available at the meeting; documents distributed to the Committee by members of the public shall be made available after the meeting.

Transportation Agency for Monterey County 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas, CA 93901-2902 Monday thru Friday 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. TEL: 831-775-0903 FAX: 831-775-0897

⁻ Goel

CORRESPONDENCE, MEDIA CLIPPINGS, AND REPORTS - No items this month.

Agenda Item 3.1



TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum

| To: | Executive Committee |
|----------------------|--|
| From: | Elouise Rodriguez, Senior Administrative Assistant |
| Meeting Date: | June 6, 2018 |
| Subject: | Executive Committee draft minutes of May 2, 2018 |

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

APPROVE the Executive Committee draft minutes of May 2, 2018.

SUMMARY:

ATTACHMENTS:

Executive Committee draft minutes of May 2, 2018

DRAFT MINUTES

TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAYS EMERGENCIES AND MONTEREY COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE JOINT POWERS AGENCY

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

Members are: John Phillips (Chair), Robert Huitt (1st Vice Chair), Luis Alejo (2nd Vice Chair), Alejandro Chavez (Past Chair), Simon Salinas (County representative), Ed Smith (City representative)

> Wednesday, May 2, 2018 *** 9:00 a.m. *** Transportation Agency Conference Room 55-B Plaza Circle, Salinas

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Phillips called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. Committee members present: Alejo, Chavez, Huitt, Phillips, Smith, and Salinas. Staff present: Goel, Hale, Muck, and Rodriguez. Others present: County Counsel Lee and Wendy Askew.
- 2. **PUBLIC COMMENTS:** None.

3. CONSENT AGENDA:

On a motion by Committee member Salinas and seconded by Huitt, the committee voted 5-0 to approve the consent agenda.

Committee member Alejo arrived after the consent agenda.

3.1 Approved minutes from the Executive Committee meeting of April 4, 2018, with correction noted by Committee member Smith to update member list.

END OF CONSENT

4. THREE-YEAR BUDGET AND FY 18/19 OVERALL WORK PROGRAM:

On a motion by Committee member Smith and seconded by Salinas, the committee voted 6-0 to recommend that the Board approve Resolution 2018-06 adopting the fiscal year 18/19 budget and overall work program and estimated budgets for fiscal years 19/20 and 20/21.

Rita Goel, Director of Finance & Administration, reported that there have been some minor changes to the budget since it was presented in February. She highlighted the changes.

Todd Muck, Deputy Executive Director, reported that the Overall Work Program matched the budget update with a few changes noted:

- Seaside/Marina Safe Routes to school grant
- Administration of rural counties scholarship for CalCOG Leadership training
- Freeway Service Patrol new beats on Highway 1 and US 101 Chualar corridor
- Highway 156 Project STIP funding shifting to Castroville Blvd interchange

The Board will be asked to adopt the budget and overall work program at the May 23, 2018 TAMC Board meeting.

5. STATE LEGISLATIVE UPDATE

On a motion by Committee member Alejo and seconded by Huitt, the committee voted 6-0 to recommend Board positions on relevant legislation.

Debbie Hale, Executive Director, highlighted the updated new bill list and staff's recommended position.

- AB 1905 (Greyson): CEQA: judicial review: transportation projects (watch)
- AB 2006 (Eggman): Agricultural Worker Clean Transportation Investment Program (support)
- AB 2249 (Cooley): Contract thresholds for public projects: local agencies (support)
- AB 2363 (Friedman): Speed limits (watch)
- AB 2615 (Carillo): State Highway system: accessibility for bicycles and pedestrians (support)

Director Hale noted that California Transportation Commission will be voting next week on the Imjin Parkway SB1 funding that will match Measure X funding. She also noted that we are inviting the CTC to Gonzales in September to discuss goods movement on the Highway 101 corridor and to visit the first multimillion dollar Measure X project.

Committee member Alejo requested that the committee analysis be included in future updated reports for new recommended positions.

6. FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION POLICY: LOCAL SALES TAX ON AVIATION FUEL

On a motion by Committee member Salinas and seconded by Alejo, the committee voted 6-0 to recommend that the TAMC Board of Directors support amending federal law so that the Federal Aviation Administration cannot redirect voter-approved local sales taxes on aviation fuel to airport improvements.

Debbie Hale, Executive Director reported the Federal Aviation Administration has issued a rule that specifies that local sales taxes on aviation fuel should be considered excise taxes and therefore under federal law must be utilized for on-airport projects. She noted that this is not what the Measure X plan promised the voters. The Self-Help Counties Coalition opposes this rule as a violation of voter intent that would also result in a loss of revenue to transportation projects in the local sales tax expenditure plans.

7. TAMC DRAFT AGENDA FOR MAY 23, 2018

Executive Director Hale reviewed the highlights of the draft regular and consent agenda for the TAMC Board meeting of May 23, 2018, as follows:

- The Board will receive an update on:
 - o Go 831 Program
 - o Pajaro to Prunedale Corridor Study
 - o Regional and Local Measure X projects, including first year accomplishments
 - o Consider
- Consider approving Resolution 2018-06 adopting the fiscal year 18/19 budget and overall work program and estimated budgets for fiscal years 19/20 and 20/21 as recommended by the Executive Committee
- Consider approving the employment agreement with Debra L. Hale

Consent Agenda:

- State legislative update
- Support amending federal aviation law
- Authorize the use of \$210,080 from State Freeway Service Patrol funding for Highway 1 from Marina to Carmel, and Highway 101 from Salinas to Chualar
- Approve Resolution 2018-07 authorizing the examination of transactions and use tax records by HdL consulting.

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS

None.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Phillips adjourned the meeting at 9:44 a.m.

Agenda Item 3.2



TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum

To:Executive CommitteeFrom:Debra L. Hale, Executive DirectorMeeting Date:June 6, 2018Subject:Khouri Contract Amendment

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

RECOMMEND that the Board:

- 1. Approve contract amendment with Khouri Consulting to provide an increase in compensation from \$30,000 per year to \$36,000 per year based on performance and hours worked; and,
- 2. Authorize the Executive Director to execute the contract amendment and changes to the contract if such changes do not increase the Agency's net cost, subject to approval by Agency Counsel.

SUMMARY:

Gus Khouri of Khouri Consulting has been providing the Agency with superior services since his hiring on July 1, 2018. His accomplishments include diligent advocacy for the Agency's priorities for transportation funding, including grants through the Senate Bill 1 programs.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The current contract with Khouri Consulting is for \$30,000 per year for two years, until June 30, 2019. The contract amendment would increase the not-to-exceed for the contract to \$36,000 per year, effective July 1, 2018. This funding is available in the FY 2018-19 budget.

DISCUSSION:

The current contract with Khouri Consulting is for \$30,000 per year for two years. This amount is less than Khouri receives from other transportation agencies, but he accepted this amount for the first year based on his belief that he would provide the Agency with superior services than the previous consultant. Staff believes he has proved this in the time he has worked for the Agency to date, by advocating for Agency positions on legislation, setting meetings in a timely manner, submitting succinct and relevant reports and tailored bill lists, and advocating on behalf of grant applications submitted by the Agency.

Staff will present the contract amendment to the Committee for consideration.

Attached are the original contract and the proposed contract amendment.

ATTACHMENTS:

- **D** Khouri Consulting Original Contract
- Amendment #1 Khouri Consulting

<u>TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY</u> <u>AND KHOURI CONSULTING</u> <u>AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES</u> <u>APPROVED BY THE TAMC BOARD ON: June 28, 2017</u> <u>CONTRACT #: 1122.2017.01</u>

This is an agreement between the Transportation Agency for Monterey County, hereinafter called "TAMC," and Khouri Consulting, with offices at 1215 K Street, Suite 1700 in Sacramento, California 95814, hereinafter called "Consultant."

The parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Employment of Consultant.</u> TAMC hereby engages Consultant, and Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services set forth in Exhibit A, in conformity with the terms of this Agreement. Consultant will complete all work in accordance with the work schedule set forth in Exhibit A.
 - (a) The work is generally described as follows: Professional services in the areas of legislative and regulatory advocacy and governmental affairs.
 - (b) Consultant represents that Consultant and its agents, subcontractors and employees performing work hereunder are specially trained, experienced, competent, and appropriately licensed to perform the work and deliver the services required by this Agreement.
 - (c) Consultant, its agents, subcontractors, and employees, shall perform all work in a safe, skillful, and professional manner and in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. All work performed under this Agreement that is required by law to be performed or supervised by licensed personnel shall be performed in accordance with such licensing requirements.
 - (d) Consultant shall furnish, at its own expense, all materials and equipment necessary to carry out the terms of this Agreement, except as otherwise provided herein.
 Consultant shall not use TAMC premises, property (including equipment, instruments, or supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in the performance of its obligations hereunder.
 - (e) Consultant's project manager shall be the person specified in Exhibit A. If Consultant desires to change the project manager, Consultant shall get written approval from TAMC of the new project manager.
- 2. <u>Term of Agreement.</u> The term of this Agreement shall begin on July 1, 2017, contingent upon approval by the TAMC Board, and Consultant shall commence work after Notice to Proceed by TAMC's Contract Administrator, identified in Section 31. Unless earlier terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall remain in force until June 30, 2019. Consultant acknowledges that this Agreement is not binding until it is fully executed by TAMC.
- 3. <u>Payments to Consultant; maximum liability.</u> Subject to the limitations set forth herein, TAMC shall pay to Consultant the amounts provided in Exhibit B: Budget, upon receipt of

deliverables listed therein. Each payment by TAMC shall be for a specific deliverable outlined in Exhibit A: Scope of Work and Schedule. The maximum amount payable to the Consultant is set forth in Exhibit B: Budget and shall not exceed the amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000). If there is any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms of either Exhibit A (Scope of Work) or Exhibit B (Budget), the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. No additional compensation will be paid to Consultant unless there is a change in the Scope of Work, as negotiated and finally approved by TAMC and Consultant through a written amendment.

4. Cost Principles.

- (a) Consultant agrees that, as applicable, the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., Federal Acquisition Regulations System, shall be used to determine the cost allowability of individual items.
- (b) Consultant also agrees to comply with federal procedures in accordance with 49 CFR, Part 18, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments to the extent applicable to this Agreement.
- (c) Any costs for which payment has been made to Consultant under this Agreement that are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 49 CFR Part 18 and 48 CFR Part 31, are subject to repayment by Consultant to TAMC.

5. Method of Payment; Monthly Invoices by Consultant.

- (a) The method of payment for this Agreement will be based on a lump sum. The total lump sum price paid to Consultant will include compensation for all work and deliverables, including travel and equipment and any costs described in Exhibit B: Budget, for this Agreement. No additional compensation will be paid to Consultant unless there is a change in the Scope of Work, as negotiated and finally approved by TAMC and Consultant through a written amendment.
- (b) Consultant may submit to TAMC an invoice for progress payments, in arrears for work performed, based upon services provided and allowable incurred costs. Such invoices shall be in a format approved by TAMC, setting forth the amounts claimed by Consultant, the deliverables for which payment is requested, together with an itemized basis for such amounts, and setting forth such other pertinent information TAMC may require. Consultant shall submit such invoice monthly or as agreed by TAMC, but in no event shall such invoice be submitted later than thirty (30) days after completion of the Consultant's work hereunder. It is understood and agreed that Consultant shall complete all work described in Exhibit A notwithstanding Consultant's submission of periodic invoices.
- (c) If, as of the date of execution of this Agreement, Consultant has already received payment from TAMC for work which is the subject of this Agreement, such amounts shall be deemed to have been paid under this Agreement and shall be credited toward TAMC's maximum liability set forth above.
- (d) Consultant shall be reimbursed for travel expenses not to exceed the State of California approved travel reimbursement rates, which are to be included as part of the maximum contract amount listed in Section 3 of this Agreement.

- 6. Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, including California Civil Code sections 2782 and 2782.6, Consultant shall defend (with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to TAMC), indemnify and hold harmless TAMC, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, costs, damages, injuries (including injury to or death of an employee of Consultant or its subcontractors), expenses and liabilities of every kind, nature and description (including incidental and consequential damages, court costs, attorneys' fees, litigation expenses and fees of expert consultants or expert witnesses incurred in connection therewith and costs of investigation) that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone that they control (collectively "Liabilities"). Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify TAMC, its officers, agents, and employees, shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused in part by the sole negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of TAMC, its officers, agents, and employees. To the extent there is an obligation to indemnify under this Paragraph, Consultant shall be responsible for incidental and consequential damages resulting directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, from Consultant's negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless TAMC shall survive the termination or expiration of the Agreement for a term to include the applicable statute of limitations related to the Consultant's performance pursuant to the Agreement.
- 7. Insurance.
 - Without limiting Consultant's duty to indemnify as set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain, at no additional cost to TAMC, throughout the term of this Agreement a policy or policies of insurance with the following coverage and minimum limits of liability (check if applicable):
 - ✓ Commercial general liability insurance, including but not limited to premises, personal injury, products, and completed operations, with a combined single limit of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence.
 - □ Professional liability insurance in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per claim and Three Million Dollars (\$3,000,000) in the aggregate, to cover liability for malpractice or errors or omissions made in the course of rendering professional services. If professional liability insurance is written on a "claims made" basis rather than an "occurrence" basis, Consultant shall, upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement, obtain extended reporting coverage ("tail coverage") with the same liability limits. Any such tail coverage shall continue for at least three years following the surviving term of Consultant's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless TAMC as set for in Section 6.
 - ✓ Comprehensive automobile insurance covering all motor vehicles, including owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in providing services under this Agreement, with a combined single limit of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence.
 - (b) All insurance required under this Agreement shall be with a company acceptable to TAMC and authorized by law to transact insurance business in the State of California. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all such insurance shall be written on

an occurrence basis; or, if any policy cannot be written on an occurrence basis, such policy shall continue in effect for a period of two years following the date of Consultant's completion of performance hereunder.

- (c) Each policy of insurance required under this Agreement shall provide that TAMC shall be given written notice at least thirty days in advance of any change, cancellation or non-renewal thereof. Each policy shall provide identical coverage for each subcontractor performing work under this Agreement, or be accompanied by a certificate of insurance for each subcontractor showing identical insurance coverage.
- (d) Commercial general liability and automobile liability policies shall provide an endorsement naming TAMC, its officers, agents, and employees, as additional insureds and shall further provide that such insurance is primary to any insurance or self-insurance maintained by TAMC, and that no insurance of any additional insured shall be called upon to contribute to a loss covered by Consultant's insurance.
- 8. <u>Workers' Compensation Insurance.</u> If during the performance of this contract, Consultant employs one or more employees, then Consultant shall maintain a workers' compensation plan covering all of its employees as required by Labor Code Sec. 3700, either (a) through workers' compensation insurance issued by an insurance company, with coverage meeting the statutory limits and with a minimum of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence for employer's liability, or (b) through a plan of self-insurance certified by the State Director of Industrial Relations, with equivalent coverage. If Consultant elects to be self-insured, the certificate of insurance otherwise required by this Agreement shall be replaced with consent to self-insure issued by the State Director of Industrial Relations. The provisions of this paragraph apply to any subcontractor employing one or more employees, and Consultant shall be responsible for all subcontractors' compliance herewith.
- 9. Safety Provisions.
 - (a) Consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to Consultant regarding necessary safety equipment or procedures. Consultant shall comply with safety instructions issued by TAMC Safety Officer and other TAMC representatives. Consultant personnel shall wear hard hats and safety vests at all times while working on a construction project site.
 - (b) If applicable to work to be performed by Consultant identified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A), and pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, TAMC has determined that such areas are within the limits of the project and are open to public traffic. Consultant shall comply with all of the requirements set forth in Divisions 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of the Vehicle Code. Consultant shall take all reasonably necessary precautions for safe operation of its vehicles and the protection of the traveling public from injury and damage from such vehicles.
 - (c) Any subcontract entered into as a result of this Agreement, shall contain all of the provisions of this Section.
 - (d) Consultant must have a Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CAL-OSHA) permit(s), as outlined in California Labor Code Sections 6500 and 6705, prior to the initiation of any practices, work, method, operation, or process related to the construction or excavation of trenches which are five feet or deeper.

- 10. <u>Certificate of Insurance and Taxpayer Identification</u>. Prior to the execution of this Agreement by TAMC, Consultant shall submit a completed federal W-9 form, Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, and file certificates of insurance with TAMC's contract administrator evidencing that Consultant has in effect the insurance required by this Agreement. Consultant shall file a new or amended certificate promptly after any change is made in any insurance policy, which would alter the information on the certificate then on file. Acceptance or approval of insurance shall in no way modify any indemnification provision of this Agreement.
- 11. <u>Maintenance of Records.</u> Consultant shall prepare, maintain and preserve all reports and records that may be required by federal, State, and local rules and regulations relating to services performed under this Agreement. Consultant shall retain all such records for at least five years from the date of final payment, or until any litigation relating to this Agreement is concluded, whichever is later. The State, State Auditor, TAMC, or any duly authorized representative of the Federal Government, as applicable, shall have access to any books, records, and documents of Consultant that are pertinent to the Agreement for audit, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested.
- 12. Audits.
 - (a) TAMC officials, as well as Caltrans, and/or State or Federal officials, as applicable, based upon funding sources for this Agreement, shall have the right, at any time during regular working hours and on reasonable advance notice, to examine, monitor and audit all work performed and all records, documents, conditions, activities and procedures of Consultant or its subcontractors relating to this Agreement. This Agreement also incorporates the provisions Government Code Section 8546.7 which provides that an audit by the State Auditor General may be performed up to three years after the final payment under any contract or subcontract involving the expenditure of public funds in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000).
 - Consultant and subcontractors' contracts, including cost proposals and indirect cost (b) rates (ICR) are subject to audits or reviews such as, but not limited to, a Contract Audit; an Incurred Cost Audit; an Indirect Cost Rates Audit, or a certified public accountant (CPA) ICR Audit Workpaper Review. If selected for audit or review, the Agreement, cost proposal and ICR and related workpapers, if applicable, will be reviewed to verify compliance with 48 CFR Part 31, and other related laws and regulations. In the instances of a CPA ICR Audit Workpaper Review, it is Consultant's responsibility to ensure Federal, State, or local government officials are allowed full access to the CPA's Workpapers. The Agreement, cost proposal, and ICR shall be adjusted by Consultant and approved by the TAMC Contract Administrator to conform to the audit or review recommendations. Consultant agrees that individual terms of costs identified in the audit report shall be incorporated into the Agreement by this reference if directed by TAMC and TAMC's sole discretion. Refusal by Consultant to incorporate audit or review recommendations, or to ensure that Federal, State, or local governments have access to CPA Workpapers, will be considered a breach of contract and good cause for termination of the Agreement and disallowance of prior reimbursed costs.

- 13. <u>Confidentiality: Return of Records.</u> Consultant and its officers, employees, agents, and subcontractors shall comply with all federal, State and local laws providing for the confidentiality of records and other information. Consultant shall not disclose any confidential information received from TAMC or prepared in connection with the performance of this Agreement without the express permission of TAMC. Consultant shall promptly transmit to TAMC all requests for disclosure of any such confidential information. Consultant shall not use any confidential information gained through the performance of this Agreement except for the purpose of carrying out Consultant's obligations hereunder. When this Agreement expires or terminates, Consultant shall return to TAMC all records, which Consultant utilized or received from TAMC to perform services under this Agreement.
- 14. Termination.
 - (a) TAMC may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice of termination to Consultant at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of termination, which date shall be specified in any such notice. In the event of such termination, the amount payable hereunder shall be reduced in proportion of the services provided prior to the effective date of termination.
 - (b) TAMC may also terminate this Agreement at any time for good cause effective immediately upon written notice to Consultant. "Good cause" includes, without limitation, the failure of Consultant to perform the required services at the time and in the manner provided herein, as well as failure to comply with the provisions of Section 12 [Audits], subsection (b), above. If TAMC terminates this Agreement for good cause, TAMC may be relieved of the payment of any consideration to Consultant, and TAMC may proceed with the work in any manner, which it deems proper. Costs incurred by TAMC thereby shall be deducted from any sum otherwise due Consultant.
 - (c) It is also mutually understood between TAMC and Consultant that this Agreement may have been written before ascertaining the availability of funds, or appropriation of funds, for the mutual benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the Agreement were executed after that determination was made. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available to TAMC for the purpose of this Agreement. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this Agreement may be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. TAMC retains the right to direct Consultant immediately to stop work and to terminate this Agreement for convenience, pursuant to Section 14(a) above, in order to address any reduction of funds.
 - (d) Termination of this Agreement shall not terminate Consultant's duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless TAMC, as provided in Section 6.
- 15. <u>Amendments and Modifications</u>. No modification or amendment of this Agreement shall be valid unless it is set forth in writing and executed by the parties hereto.
- 16. <u>Non-discrimination</u>. Throughout the performance of this Agreement, Consultant will not unlawfully discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any person because of sex, race, color, religious creed, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40), denial of family

and medical care leave, denial of pregnancy disability leave, or sexual orientation, either in Consultant's employment practices or in the furnishing of services to recipients. Consultant shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of its employees and applicants for employment and all persons receiving and requesting services are free of such discrimination. Consultant shall comply fully with all federal, State and local laws and regulations which prohibit discrimination. The provision of services primarily or exclusively to any target population designated herein shall not be deemed prohibited discrimination.

- 17. <u>Harassment.</u> TAMC maintains a strict policy prohibiting unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment, in any form, including verbal, physical and visual harassment by any employee, supervisor, manager, officer or Board member, or agent of the employer. Vendors, contractors, and consultants shall not engage in conduct that has an effect of unreasonably interfering with a TAMC employee's work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.
- 18. <u>Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Participation</u>. *This Paragraph Intentionally Omitted*.
- 19. Independent Contractor. In its performance under this Agreement, Consultant is at all times acting and performing as an independent contractor and not as an employee of TAMC or any of its member jurisdictions. No offer or obligation of employment is intended in any manner, and Consultant shall not become entitled by virtue of this Agreement to receive any form of benefits accorded to employees including without limitation leave time, health insurance, workers' compensation coverage, disability benefits, and retirement contributions. Consultant shall be solely liable for and obligated to pay directly all applicable taxes, including without limitation federal and State income taxes and social security arising out of Consultant's performance of this Agreement. In connection therewith, Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless TAMC from any and all liability, which TAMC may incur because of Consultant's failure to make such payments.
- 20. <u>Delegation of Duties; Subcontracting.</u> Consultant is engaged by TAMC for its unique qualifications and abilities. Consultant may not, therefore, delegate any of its basic duties under this Agreement, except to the extent that delegation to Consultant's employees is contemplated herein through the Scope of Work and Budget. No work shall be subcontracted without the written consent of TAMC, except as provided in this Agreement or its attachments. Any subcontract in excess of \$25,000 shall contain the same provisions as found in Sections 4 and 5(b)–(d), inclusive. Notwithstanding any subcontract, Consultant shall continue to be liable to TAMC for the performance of all work hereunder. Any work performed by a subcontractor shall be done in conformance with this Agreement, and TAMC shall pay Consultant for the work but not any markup, including subcontract management, supervision, administrative and other expenses, or reimbursable costs. Consultant shall not assign, sell, mortgage or otherwise transfer its interest or obligations in this Agreement without TAMC's prior written consent.
- 21. <u>Agency's Rights to Work Product</u>. All original materials prepared by Consultant in connection with its work hereunder including but not limited to computer codes,

customized computer routines developed using proprietary or commercial software packages, reports, documents, maps, graphs, charts, photographs and photographic negatives shall be the property of TAMC and shall be delivered to TAMC prior to final payment. Consultant may utilize any existing materials developed by Consultant prior to commencement of work under this Agreement, which materials shall remain the property of Consultant.

- 22. <u>Compliance with Terms of Federal or State Grant.</u> If any part of this Agreement has been or will be funded pursuant to a grant from the federal or State government in which TAMC is the grantee, Consultant shall comply with all provisions of such grant applicable to Consultant's work hereunder, and said provisions shall be deemed a part of this Agreement as though fully set forth herein.
- 23. <u>Prevailing Wages</u>. Consultant shall comply with the all prevailing wage requirements, including California Labor Code section 1770, et seq., and any Federal or local laws or ordinances, that may be applicable to the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.
- 24. Equipment, Supplies or Consultant Services Purchases.
 - (a) Prior authorization in writing by TAMC's Contract Administrator shall be required before Consultant enters into any unbudgeted purchase order, or subcontract exceeding Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) for supplies, equipment, or unbudgeted Consultant services. Consultant shall provide an evaluation of desirability of incurring such costs.
 - (b) For purchase of any items, service or consulting work not covered in Consultant's Cost Proposal and exceeding Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000,), prior authorization is required by TAMC's Contract Administrator; three competitive quotations must be submitted with the request, or the absence of bidding must be adequately justified.
 - (c) Any equipment purchased as a result of this Agreement is subject to the following:
 - i. Consultant shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable property. Nonexpendable property is defined as having a useful life of at least two years and an acquisition cost of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) or more. If the purchased equipment needs replacement and is sold or traded in, TAMC shall receive a proper refund or credit for such equipment at the conclusion of the Agreement, or if the Agreement is terminated, Consultant may either keep the equipment and credit TAMC in an amount equal to its fair market value, or sell such equipment at the best price obtainable at a public or private sale, in accordance with established TAMC procedures for such sales and then credit TAMC in an amount equal to that sales price. If Consultant elects to keep the equipment, fair market value shall be determined at Consultant's expense, on the basis of a competent independent appraisal of such equipment. Appraisals shall be obtained from and appraiser mutually acceptable to TAMC and Consultant; if it is determined to sell the equipment, the terms and conditions of such sale must be approved in advance by TAMC.
 - ii. Consultant acknowledges that, if federal funds are used in this Agreement, 49 CFR, Part 18 requires a credit to Federal funds when participating equipment with a fair market value greater than Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000) is credited to the project for which this Agreement was entered into.

- (d) Consultant shall include these provisions into any subcontract in excess of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000.).
- 25. <u>Conflict of Interest.</u> Consultant warrants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest during the term of this Agreement, which would directly or indirectly conflict in any manner or to any degree with its full and complete performance of all services under this Agreement.
- 26. <u>Governing Laws.</u> This Agreement shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of the State of California, and the parties hereby agree that the County of Monterey shall be the proper venue for any dispute arising hereunder.
- 27. <u>Construction of Agreement.</u> The parties agree that each party has fully participated in the review and revision of this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement or any exhibit or amendment. To that end, it is understood and agreed that this Agreement has been arrived at through negotiation, and that neither party is to be deemed the party which prepared this Agreement within the meaning of Civil Code Section 1654. Section and paragraph headings appearing herein are for convenience only and shall not be sued to interpret the terms of this Agreement.
- 28. <u>Waiver</u>. Any waiver of any term or condition hereof must be in writing. No such waiver shall be construed as a waiver of any other term or condition herein.
- 29. <u>Successors and Assigns</u>. This Agreement and all rights, privileges, duties and obligations hereunder, to the extent assignable or delegable, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors, permitted assigns and heirs.
- 30. <u>Time is of the Essence.</u> The parties mutually acknowledge and agree that time is of the essence with respect to every provision hereof in which time is an element. No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act shall be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligation or act, nor shall any such extension create a precedent for any further or future extension.
- 31. <u>Contract Administrators.</u> Consultant's designated principal responsible for administering Consultant's work under this Agreement shall be Gus F. Khouri, Principal. TAMC's designated administrator of this Agreement shall be Debra L. Hale, Executive Director.

32. <u>Notices.</u> Notices required under this Agreement shall be delivered personally or by electronic facsimile, or by first class or certified mail with postage prepaid. Notice shall be deemed effective upon personal delivery or facsimile transmission, or on the third day after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service. Consultant shall give TAMC prompt notice of any change of address. Unless otherwise changed according to these notice provisions, notices shall be addressed as follows:

| To TAMC: | To Consultant: |
|---|---------------------------|
| Debra L. Hale | Gus F. Khouri |
| Executive Director | Principal |
| Transportation Agency for Monterey County | Khouri Consulting |
| 55B Plaza Circle | 1215 K Street, Suite 1700 |
| Salinas, CA 93901 | Sacramento, CA 95814 |
| Tel: 831-775-0903 | Tel: (916) 605-8975 |
| Fax: 831-775-0897 | Fax: (916) 503-2401 |
| E-mail: <u>debbie@tamcmonterey.org</u> | gus@khouriconsult.com |

- 33. <u>Non-exclusive Agreement</u>. This Agreement is non-exclusive and both parties reserve the right to contract with other entities for the same or similar services.
- 34. <u>Execution of Agreement.</u> Any individual executing this Agreement on behalf of an entity represents and warrants that he or she has the requisite authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of such entity and to bind the entity to the terms and conditions hereof. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement.
- 35. <u>Debarment and Suspension Certification</u>. Consultant's signature affixed below shall constitute a certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Consultant has complied with CFR Title 49, Part 29, Debarment and Suspension Certificate which certifies that Consultant or any person associated with Consultant in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, or manager is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any federal agency; has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by an federal agency within the past three (3) years; does not have a proposed debarment pending; and has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past three (3) years. Any exceptions to this certification must be disclosed to the TAMC.
- 36. <u>Rebates, Kickbacks or Other Unlawful Consideration Prohibited</u>. Consultant warrants that this Agreement was not obtained or secured through rebates, kickbacks or other unlawful consideration, either promised or paid to any TAMC employee. TAMC shall have the right, in its sole and absolute discretion to do any of the following for breach or violation of this warranty: terminate the Agreement without liability; pay for the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct from the compensation to be paid under this Agreement (or otherwise recover) the full amount of any such rebate, kickback or unlawful consideration.

Khouri Consulting Agreement Approved by the TAMC Board on June 28, 2017 Page 11 of 15

- 37. Prohibition of Expending Local Agency, State or Federal Funds by Consultant for Lobbying.
 - (a) Consultant certifies to the best of his, her or its knowledge and belief that:
 - i. No State or Federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid, by or on behalf of Consultant to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any state or federal agency; a member of the State Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of the State Legislature or United States Congress; or any employee of a Member of the Legislature or Congress, in connection with the awarding of any State or Federal contract; in connection with the making of any State or Federal grant; in connection with the making of any State or Federal loan; in connection with the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and in connection with the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any State or Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.
 - ii. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress; or an employee of a Member of Congress, in connection with this contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement, then Consultant shall complete and submit a Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
 - (b) This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, US Code. Consultant acknowledges that any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000) and not more than One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000) for such failure.
 - (c) By signing this Agreement, Consultant also agrees that Consultant will require that the language of this certification will be included in all lower-tier subcontracts which exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000), and that all recipients of such subcontracts shall certify and disclose accordingly.
- 38. <u>Exhibits.</u> The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated by reference: Exhibit A – Scope of Work and Work Schedule Exhibit B – Budget
- 39. <u>Entire Agreement.</u> This document, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and supersedes any and all prior written or oral negotiations and representations between the parties concerning all matters relating to the subject of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, TAMC and Consultant execute this agreement as follows:

TAMC

By

Debra L. Hale

Executive Director

CONSULTANT

Khouri Consulting

By

Gus F. Khouri Principal

6 Dated:

INSTRUCTIONS: If Consultant is a corporation (including limited liability and nonprofit corporations), the full legal name of the corporation shall be set forth together with the signatures of two specified officers. If Consultant is a partnership, the name of the partnership shall be set forth together with the signature of a partner with authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the partnership. If Consultant is contracting in an individual capacity, the individual shall set forth the name of his or her business, if any, and shall personally sign the Agreement.

Approved as to form TAMC Counsel Dated:

For TAMC internal use:

Work Element number to be used for the contract:

EXHIBIT A: SCOPE OF SERVICES

- 1. Consultant's services under this Agreement shall include but are not limited to the following:
 - a) Assist TAMC in determining positions on proposed legislation and recommend appropriate actions;
 - b) Advocate TAMC legislative positions based on strategy jointly developed and agreed upon by TAMC;
 - c) Advocate TAMC interests relating to legislative, regulatory or executive actions of the Legislature, the California Public Utilities Commission, the California Transportation Commission, the Office of the Governor, the California State Transportation Agency, and the Department of Transportation (Caltrans);
 - d) As appropriate, work with other agencies, interest groups and associations to develop a coalition of interests in support of TAMC positions;
 - e) Provide all technical, political and logistic support necessary for TAMC to appear or testify in legislative, regulatory or executive settings when desired by TAMC;
 - f) Assist with TAMC funding requests before the California Transportation Commission and Caltrans;
 - g) Assist TAMC in gathering information and analyzing political situations in connection with developing and implementing TAMC legislative goals; and
 - h) Provide periodic oral and written status reports on legislative, regulatory, executive and other political issues of interest to TAMC.
- 2. Issues on the 2017 legislative program that could require this assistance include:
 - 1S. Increase and preserve funding for transportation projects, support the constitutional protection of all transportation funding resources, and preserve regional discretion and priority-setting.
 - 2S. Encourage the state to increase investments in passenger rail and bus transit projects and seek funding for Monterey County projects.
 - 3S. Support legislation to transfer funding derived from the sale of excess rights-ofway purchased for the Prunedale Bypass project to priority projects in the region.
 - 4S. Support legislation to expand the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority to Salinas, and to expand the Los Angeles-San Diego Rail Corridor Agency (LOSSAN) to San Francisco.

- 5S. Support legislation that promotes transit-oriented development, complete streets, alternative commutes, and active transportation projects.
- 6S. Work with partner agencies to reach agreement on proposals for California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) reform, while retaining environmental protections.
- 7S. Support efforts to extend and expand Public Private Partnership authority, public tolling authority, and design-build authority, expand mode eligibility, and allow for regional control of such projects.
- 8S. Support efforts to develop alternative funding sources to offset the reduction in gas tax revenues and ensure that any pay-by-the-mile funding is equitably assessed and distributed.
- 9S. Support redefinition of "disadvantaged communities" in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (i.e., "cap and trade") grant program guidelines to better reflect economic and rural area considerations, and seek funding from the program for regional priority projects.
- 10S. Support measures to allow the California Department of Fish and Wildlife to allow Caltrans to adopt appropriate avoidance and mitigation measures to protect the Santa Cruz Long-Toed Salamander from potential impacts of the Highway 156 project.
- 11S. Support funding proposals to enable cities and counties to implement storm water runoff requirements for transportation projects.
- 12S. Support legislation that promotes transparency and access to information on rail transport of hazardous materials.
- 13S. Support efforts to remove the Transportation Development Act's Unmet Transit Needs hearing requirement if 100% of the TDA funds are already allocated to transit.
- 14S. Support continued advance, lump-sum payments of state funds.
- 15S. Support member agencies' requests for state funding of regionally significant transportation projects and support partner agency legislative efforts as they interface with regional transportation priorities, when they are consistent with Transportation Agency for Monterey County priorities.
- 3. The Consultant Project Manager shall be: Gus F. Khouri

EXHIBIT B: BUDGET

Payment for monthly services.

TAMC shall pay Consultant Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500) at the end of each month for the performance of all things necessary for, or incidental to, the performance of work as set forth in the Scope of Work, including any expenses or other costs, subject to receipt of a monthly invoice and progress report. Consultant's compensation under this paragraph is based on the performance of approximately ten (10) hours of work each month for TAMC.

AMENDMENT #1 TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY AND KHOURI CONSULTING FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT #: 1122.2017.01

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 to the agreement (hereinafter, "Agreement") dated June 28, 2017, between the Transportation Agency for Monterey County, hereinafter referred to as "TAMC," and Khouri Consulting, hereinafter referred to as "Consultant," is hereby entered into between TAMC and Consultant.

RECITALS:

- A. WHEREAS, the parties had previously entered into an agreement on June 28, 2017; and
- B. **WHEREAS**, the original Agreement had a two-year term and a total Agreement amount that was not to exceed Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000); and
 - C. WHEREAS, Consultant is performing above standard and expending more time than anticipated working on behalf of TAMC, by advocating for TAMC positions on legislation, setting meetings in a timely manner, submitting succinct and relevant reports and tailored bill lists, and advocating on behalf of grant applications submitted by the TAMC; and
- D. WHEREAS, the parties wish to modify the Agreement as described below;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. Exhibit B: Budget shall be replaced with "Exhibit B-1: Revised Budget" which is attached hereto.
- 2. Paragraph 3 of the Agreement (Payments to Consultant; maximum liability) shall be amended so that the third sentence of that Paragraph reads as follows:

"The maximum amount payment to the Consultant is set forth in Exhibit B-1: Revised Budget and shall not exceed the amount of Thirty-Six Thousand Dollars (\$36,000)."

- 3. Except as provided herein, all other terms and conditions of the original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
- 4. A copy of this Renewal and Amendment No. 1 shall be attached to the original Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to the Agreement with Khouri Consulting.

TAMC :

Khouri Consulting:

Debra L. Hale Executive Director Gus Khouri Principal

(date)

(date)

Approved as to form:

TAMC Counsel

(date)

EXHIBIT B-1: BUDGET

Payment for monthly services.

TAMC shall pay Consultant Three Thousand Dollars (\$3,000) at the end of each month beginning July 1, 2018, for the performance of all things necessary for, or incidental to, the performance of work as set forth in the Scope of Work, including any expenses or other costs, subject to receipt of a monthly invoice and progress report.

Consultant's compensation under this Exhibit B-1 is based on the performance of approximately twelve (12) hours of work each month for TAMC.



TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum

| То: | Technical Advisory Committee |
|----------------------|--|
| From: | Michael Zeller, Principal Transportation Planner |
| Meeting Date: | June 6, 2018 |
| Subject: | 2018 Regional Fee Nexus Study Update |

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

RECEIVE update on the 2018 Regional Development Impact Fee Nexus Study.

SUMMARY:

The Transportation Agency is required to update the Regional Development Impact Fee every five years. This process includes reviewing the land use and populatin assumptions in the regional travel demand model, forecasting future travel demands, updating the project list as necessary to meet those demands, revising project costs, and developing an updated fee schedule.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The agency's approved budget includes \$110,000 in fiscal year 2017/18 for the 2018 Nexus Study Update. In the past analysis, the Regional Development Impact Fee program was projected to generate \$90 million up to year 2030, with one-percent of these revenues reimbursing the agency's fee program administrative expenses.

DISCUSSION:

The Regional Development Impact Fee program was adopted by the Transportation Agency Board of Directors and each of the jurisdictions and went into effect in August 2008. As part of the Joint Powers Agreement that established the program, and state law, the Agency is required to conduct a major update to the fee program once every five years.

In August 2017, the TAMC Board approved the selection of Wood Rodgers to conduct the technical work necessary to update the regional fees to reflect any changes that may have occurred in the past five years, such as: updates to population, employment and housing projections utilized in the regional travel forecast model, the expected pace of new development, changes in land use plans including general plan updates, the need for new transportation projects based on growth, and estimated project

costs.

This update also evaluated incorporating the Fort Ord Reuse Authority zone into the regional fee program. The regional fee program segments the County into four distinct zones - North County, Peninsula / South Coast, Greater Salinas, and South County. Currently, development projects located within the FORA boundary only pay the FORA Community Facilities District fee and are exempt by policy from payment of the regional fee. With the planned sunset of FORA in 2020, the Transportation Agency has been coordinating with FORA staff and the FORA Transition Task Force on the potential transfer of regional impact fee responsibilities to the regional fee program. For this study, staff evaluated two scenarios for including the FORA area in the regional fee program: 1) as a separate fifth zone covering the FORA boundary; and 2) as part of the existing greater Monterey Peninsula zone.

Using the AMBAG Regional Travel Demand Model, the consultant, Wood Rodgers, identified the existing and future traffic congestion (or "deficiencies") on the regional transportation network in order to determine where roadway improvements will be needed by the 2035 horizon-year. The baseline model scenario assumed all planned population and employment growth over the next 20 years, but no new roadway improvements. After the identifying where regional roadways were anticipated to be congested due to this future growth, the team selected fourteen transportation improvement projects to analyze as potential future improvements to include in the fee program.

Staff reviewed this draft list of projects with the Technical Advisory Committee at the February 2018 meeting, and made updates based on feedback from Committee members. Wood Rodgers then conducted an additional model run, assuming the construction of the proposed transportation improvements, to evaluate whether or not these projects relieved congestion, and which zones the new vehicle trips were coming from. After this review, staff recommends that twelve projects be included in the 2018 Regional Development Impact Fee (the list of projects and draft fees are **attached**).

The two projects not recommended to be included are the State Route 1 / Monterey Road Interchange and the Del Monte Boulevard (Marina) Extension. These two projects were included in the models runs since they are also included in the FORA Capital Improvement Program. However, the modeling showed that the benefits from these projects are localized to the Peninsula / FORA area, whereas the other regional fee projects show benefits across multiple zones. Therefore, staff recommends that it is more appropriate to fund these projects solely by development within the former Fort Ord.

As compared to the 2013 Regional Development Impact Fee Nexus Study, the draft 2018 regional fee schedule shows a minor increase in the fee per trip for the North County and Greater Salinas zones, an increase of \$346 to the fee per trip for the Peninsula zone (from \$207 to \$553), and a slight decrease for the South County zone. Part of the reason for the change in the fees is that this 2018 study used a newer version of the AMBAG model that forecasts fewer vehicle trips countywide from the version used in the 2013 study. In addition, the costs for several projects included in the 2018 study, such as State Routes 68 and 156, have increased significantly since the previous study. The share of the increased costs were weighted more towards the North County, Greater Salinas, and Peninsula zones based on the distribution of new vehicle trips around the county. This increase in the share of costs for

the North County, Greater Salinas, and Peninsula zones coupled with a decrease in the number of vehicle trips is the primary reason for the increase in the fee per trip. The South County zone, however, remains consistent with the 2013 study as the share of project costs attributable to this zone decreased at a similar rate as the vehicle trips.

With respect to the FORA area, of the two scenarios studied, the first option considered keeping the FORA zone separate and resulted in a fee per trip of \$458. This is comparable to the current FORA Community Facilities District fee per trip of \$489 for projects where the two programs overlap. The second scenario considered merging the FORA zone with the Peninsula zone, which resulted in a fee per trip of \$525 for the combined area.

The final steps for the fee update are for the Board of Directors to provide input, confirm the draft regional fees by benefit zone and adopt the 2018 Regional Fee Nexus Study Update. After TAMC Board approval, the final report and updated fees will be circulated for review and approval by the cities and the County.

ATTACHMENTS:

D 2018 Regional Development Impact Fee Update - Comparison of Current and Proposed Fees

Regional Development Impact Fee Comparison of 2013 to 2018 Nexus Study - DRAFT Five Zones with FORA kept separate

| | Tota | l Project Cost | Nexus Share | | | Share | Zone 1 - North County | | | Zone 2 - Greater Salinas | | Zone 3 - | Zone 4 - | | Zone 5 - |
|---|------|-----------------|-------------|-------|----|-------------|--------------------------|------------|---|-----------------------------|----|------------|------------------|----|------------|
| | 1014 | in Project Cost | | | | | | | | | | Peninsula | South County | | FORA |
| 1 SR-1 Corridor & Busway | \$ | 26,481,000 | | 8.5% | \$ | 2,238,906 | Ş | - | Ş | 8,763 | \$ | 1,722,142 | \$ 12,901 | \$ | 495,101 |
| 2 SR-156 Widening | \$ | 388,834,000 | | 10.7% | \$ | 41,567,649 | Ş | 7,592,479 | Ş | 1,923,249 | \$ | 26,074,436 | \$ 2,640,280 | \$ | 3,337,206 |
| 3 Marina-Salinas Corridor | \$ | 74,556,000 | | 23.3% | \$ | 17,377,544 | Ş | 187,958 | Ş | 6,495,153 | \$ | 3,821,379 | \$ 399,081 | \$ | 6,473,974 |
| 4 Davis Road North | \$ | 7,736,000 | | 16.8% | \$ | 1,296,946 | Ş | 29,733 | Ş | 622,914 | \$ | 269,887 | \$ - | \$ | 374,412 |
| 5 Davis Road South | \$ | 15,736,000 | | 54.9% | \$ | 8,636,152 | Ş | 107,584 | ç | 3,733,176 | \$ | 861,392 | \$ 145,597 | \$ | 3,788,403 |
| 6 Del Monte Corridor (Monterey) Improvements | \$ | 49,616,000 | | 17.0% | \$ | 8,440,669 | Ş | 34,598 | Ş | 190,288 | \$ | 7,404,524 | \$ 30,422 | \$ | 780,836 |
| 7 US-101 South County Phase 1 (Frontage Roads - Salinas to Chualar) | \$ | 108,096,000 | | 16.6% | \$ | 17,937,753 | Ş | - | Ş | 6,829,956 | \$ | 1,905,746 | \$ 8,800,106 | \$ | 401,945 |
| 8 US-101 South County Phase 2 (Harris Road Interchange) | \$ | 59,850,000 | | 12.5% | \$ | 7,463,477 | Ş | - | Ş | 1,775,464 | \$ | 2,201,053 | \$ 2,938,654 | \$ | 548,305 |
| 9 SR-68 Commuter Improvements | \$ | 79,955,000 | | 3.9% | \$ | 3,100,668 | Ş | - | Ş | 534,146 | \$ | 1,776,319 | \$ 368,603 | \$ | 421,600 |
| 10 US 101 Widening from Airport Boulevard to Boronda Road | \$ | 57,863,000 | | 8.2% | \$ | 4,773,297 | Ş | - | Ş | 3,368,419 | \$ | 35,310 | \$ 1,209,254 | \$ | 160,314 |
| 11 County Route G12 San Miguel Canyon Improvements | \$ | 74,221,000 | | 9.4% | \$ | 6,971,846 | Ş | 4,890,406 | Ş | 200,696 | \$ | 373,954 | \$ 1,426,042 | \$ | 80,749 |
| 12 Salinas Road Improvements | \$ | 7,516,000 | | 8.4% | \$ | 628,280 | Ş | 393,147 | Ş | - | \$ | 4,988 | \$ 229,066 | \$ | 1,079 |
| Transit Component | | | | 100% | \$ | 10,000,000 | Ş | 528,885 | ç | 4,426,986 | \$ | 4,097,352 | \$ 540,920 | \$ | 405,857 |
| Administration | | | | 1% | \$ | 1,304,332 | Ş | 137,648 | ç | 301,092 | \$ | 505,485 | \$ 187,409 | \$ | 172,698 |
| Total Project Costs | \$ | 950,460,000 | | | \$ | 131,737,520 | Ş | 13,902,438 | Ş | 30,410,302 | \$ | 51,053,967 | \$ 18,928,335 | \$ | 17,442,478 |

| 2018 Fee per Trip - DRAFT | \$ 572 | \$ 365 | \$ 553 | \$ 228 | \$ 458 |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| 2013 Fee per Trip | \$ 459 | \$ 315 | \$ 207 | \$ 230 | \$ - |

Regional Development Impact Fee Comparison of 2013 to 2018 Nexus Study - DRAFT Four Zones with FORA included with Peninsula

| | | | Í | | | | Γ | | | | | Zone 3 - | | |
|---|--------------------|-------------|---|-------------|----|-------------|----------|-------|-----------|----|-----------------|------------------|----|--------------|
| | Total Project Cost | | | Nexus Share | | | Zone 1 - | | | Zo | one 2 - Greater | Peninsula + | | Zone 4 - |
| | | | | | | | | North | County | | Salinas | FORA | | South County |
| 1 SR-1 Corridor & Busway | \$ | 26,481,000 | | 8.5% | \$ | 2,238,906 | | \$ | - | \$ | 8,763 | \$ 2,217,243 | \$ | 12,901 |
| 2 SR-156 Widening | \$ | 388,834,000 | | 10.7% | \$ | 41,567,649 | | \$7 | 7,592,479 | \$ | 1,923,249 | \$ 29,411,642 | Ş | 2,640,280 |
| 3 Marina-Salinas Corridor | \$ | 74,556,000 | | 23.3% | \$ | 17,377,544 | | \$ | 187,958 | \$ | 6,495,153 | \$ 10,295,353 | Ş | 399,081 |
| 4 Davis Road North | \$ | 7,736,000 | | 16.8% | \$ | 1,296,946 | | \$ | 29,733 | \$ | 622,914 | \$ 644,299 | Ş | - |
| 5 Davis Road South | \$ | 15,736,000 | | 54.9% | \$ | 8,636,152 | | \$ | 107,584 | \$ | 3,733,176 | \$ 4,649,794 | Ş | 145,597 |
| 6 Del Monte Corridor (Monterey) Improvements | \$ | 49,616,000 | | 17.0% | \$ | 8,440,669 | | \$ | 34,598 | \$ | 190,288 | \$ 8,185,361 | Ş | 30,422 |
| 7 US-101 South County Phase 1 (Frontage Roads - Salinas to Chualar) | \$ | 108,096,000 | | 16.6% | \$ | 17,937,753 | | \$ | - | \$ | 6,829,956 | \$ 2,307,690 | Ş | 8,800,106 |
| 8 US-101 South County Phase 2 (Harris Road Interchange) | \$ | 59,850,000 | | 12.5% | \$ | 7,463,477 | | \$ | - | \$ | 1,775,464 | \$ 2,749,358 | Ş | 2,938,654 |
| 9 SR-68 Commuter Improvements | \$ | 79,955,000 | | 3.9% | \$ | 3,100,668 | | \$ | - | \$ | 534,146 | \$ 2,197,919 | Ş | 368,603 |
| 10 US 101 Widening from Airport Boulevard to Boronda Road | \$ | 57,863,000 | | 8.2% | \$ | 4,773,297 | | \$ | - | \$ | 3,368,419 | \$ 195,624 | Ş | 1,209,254 |
| 11 County Route G12 San Miguel Canyon Improvements | \$ | 74,221,000 | | 9.4% | \$ | 6,971,846 | | \$4 | ,890,406 | \$ | 200,696 | \$ 454,703 | Ş | 1,426,042 |
| 12 Salinas Road Improvements | \$ | 7,516,000 | | 8.4% | \$ | 628,280 | | \$ | 393,147 | \$ | - | \$ 6,067 | Ş | 229,066 |
| Transit Component | | | | 100% | \$ | 10,000,000 | | \$ | 528,885 | \$ | 4,426,986 | \$ 4,503,209 | ç | 540,920 |
| Administration | | | | 1% | \$ | 1,304,332 | | \$ | 137,648 | \$ | 301,092 | \$ 678,183 | Ş | 187,409 |
| Total Project Costs | \$ | 950,460,000 | | | \$ | 131,737,520 | | \$ 13 | 8,902,438 | \$ | 30,410,302 | \$ 68,496,445 | Ş | 18,928,335 |

| 2018 Fee per Trip - DRAFT | \$ 572 | \$ 365 | \$ 525 | \$ 228 |
|---------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| 2013 Fee per Trip | \$ 459 | \$ 315 | \$ 207 | \$ 230 |
| | | | | |



TRANSPORTATION AGENCY FOR MONTEREY COUNTY

Memorandum

| То: | Executive Committee |
|----------------------|--|
| From: | Rita Goel, Director of Finance & Administration |
| Meeting Date: | June 6, 2018 |
| Subject: | Executive Director & Counsel Evaluation |

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

RECOMMEND that the Board of Directors approve delaying the annual evaluation for the Agency Executive Director and Counsel to December 2019 from December 2018.

SUMMARY:

The Transportation Agency bylaws require an annual evaluation of the Executive Director and Counsel. Executive Director Hale's employment agreement also states that the TAMC Board shall evaluate her by the December Board meeting of each year and Hale shall prepare goals and accomplishments for review by the Board.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

None.

DISCUSSION:

The Agency bylaws require an annual evaluation of the Executive Director and Counsel. Executive Director Hale's employment agreement also states that the TAMC Board shall evaluate her by the December Board meeting of each year and Hale shall prepare goals and accomplishments for review by the TAMC Board.

Executive Director Debra L. Hale's new employment agreement, which was finalized in May 2018, was based on the 2017 performance evaluation. TAMC Counsel Susan Blitch was recently appointed to this position and there has not been sufficient time to evaluate her performance. Based on discussions with Board chair, staff recommends that the annual evaluations for both be delayed to December 2019. (The evaluation process normally starts in June.) Ms. Hale will give a status report on her goals and accomplishment to the Board in July/August 2018. Any performance issues can be raised with the Chair at any time.